
 
TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2023 – 6:30 pm 

TOWN HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

DRAFT AGENDA 

 

Please note there will be an opportunity during the meeting for citizens to address the Town 

Council when the Mayor declares public comments open. We request that anyone addressing 

the Council sign up, approach the podium when called, state your first and last name, and 

provide your complete mailing address. 

 

A. WELCOME – Mayor Pillion 

B. ROLL CALL – Kim Kingsley, Clerk 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Councilmember Wayne Austin 

D. PRAYER – Brad Farmer, Executive Director, Faith In Action 

E. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – Mayor Pillion 

F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

• October 3, 2023 

• October 19, 2023 

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Please place your name on the sign-up sheet provided; comments are 

limited to three (3) minutes per person.  

• Town of Abingdon residents 

• Other public comments (e.g. property owners, organizations) 

H. PROCLAMATIONS  

I. PUBLIC HEARING -   Please place your name on the sign-up sheet provided; comments are 

limited to five (5) minutes per person. 

  

1.  Proposed special use permit to renovate the existing digital marquee sign located 

     at Jonesboro Road and VHCC Drive intersection, specifically at the entrance to 

     Virginia Highlands Community College. 

 

2.  Proposed special use permit for an accessory dwelling unit exceeding the maximum 

     requirement of 800 square feet to provide additional space for handicap accessibility. 

     The request total square footage is 985 sq. ft., 227 Stone Mill Road, Parcel No. 018-7-3. 

 

3.  Proposed Zoning Text Amendment, Chapter 44. Land Use, Article VIII. Division 4.  

     Signs, Sections 8-4-3, 8-4-4, 8-4-6, and Article XI. Definitions, Division I. In General, Section 

    11-1-2. General and use definitions. 

 

 



J.   RESOLUTIONS 

     1.  Resolution declaring the Council’s support for naming the Interstate 81 bridge over 

          Cummings Street (Exit 17) the “Master Firefighter Cameron B. Craig Memorial Bridge”  

          and petitioning the Virginia Commonwealth Transportation Board to concur with the decision.   

          - Mike Cochran, Town Manager 

2. Resolution approving proposed special use permit to renovate the existing digital marquee sign  

    located at Jonesboro Road and VHCC Drive intersection, specifically at the entrance to 

    Virginia Highlands Community College. – Mayana Rice, Assistant Town Manager and  

    Director of Community Development 

3.  Resolution approving proposed special use permit for an accessory dwelling unit exceeding the  

     Maximum requirement of 800 square feet to provide additional space for handicap accessibility. 

     The request is total square footage is 985 sq. ft., 227 Stone Mill Road, Parcel No. 018-7-3. – 

     Mayana Rice, Assistant Town Manager and Director of Community Development 

K. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES 

1.    An Ordinance for a Zoning Text Amendment, Chapter 44. Land Use, Article VIII. Division  

       4.  Signs, Sections 8-4-3, 8-4-4, 8-4-6, and Article XI. Definitions, Division I.  In General,  

       Section11-1-2. General and use definitions. - Mayana Rice, Assistant Town Manager and  

       Director of Community Development 

L. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCES 

M. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS 

N. NEW BUSINESS 

      1.  Woodard & Curran quarterly update for Wolf Creek Reclamation Facility – Ryan Sullivan,  

           Woodard & Curran 

      2.  Approval of contract for The Meadows splashpad recirculation tank – Mayana Rice, Assistant 

           Town Manager and Director of Economic Development 

      3.  Presentation of the Sinking Spring Cemetery Master Plan – Mayana Rice, Assistant 

           Town Manager and Director of Economic Development 

     4.   Consideration of Agreement with Davis Brothers Roofing and Sheet Metal Fabricators, Inc. 

           for Sinking Spring Cabin cedar shake roof system – Mayana Rice, Assistant Town  

           Manager and Director of Economic Development 

O. OLD BUSINESS 

P. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM TOWN MANAGER 

      1.  Recognition of Treasurer, Tammy Baldwin, for thirty years of service to the Town 

      2.  Recognition of employees of Green Acres Assisted Living and AFD members for response to  

           fire at facility on October 17, 2023 

Q. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS 

R. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 

 1.  Sinking Spring Cemetery Committee 

      -Appointment to fill the unexpired term of Richard Morgan, representative for Washington 

             County Historic Society 

      -Reappointment of John Legard, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

      2.  Infrastructure Advisory Committee 

           -Appointment to fill the expired term of Charlene Truhlik 

           -Appointment to fill the expired term of Charlie Fugate 

      3.  Tourism Advisory Committee 



           -Appointment to fill expired term of Morgan Egan, Barter Theatre representative advertised  

 4.  Board of Zoning Appeals 

           -Reappointment of Kenny Shuman, Representative for Planning Commission, who 

            is eligible to serve an additional term 

    5.  Historic Preservation Review Board 

      -Reappointment of Betsy White, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

 

If Council so desires, Closed Session pursuant to the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, 

Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) for the purpose of considering applications for appointment for 

position(s) on Sinking Spring Cemetery Committee, Infrastructure Advisory Committee, 

Tourism Advisory Committee, Board of Zoning Appeals and/or Historic Preservation 

Review Board 

S.  CLOSED SESSION  

T.  ADJOURNMENT 



- 88 - 

October 3, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

TOWN OF ABINGDON 

COUNCIL MEETING 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 3, 2023 – 6:30 pm 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS – MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 

 The meeting of the Abingdon Town Council was held on Tuesday, October 3, 2023, at 6:30 

pm in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building. 

 

A. WELCOME – Mayor Pillion  

B. ROLL CALL  

 

Members of Council Present: 

 

 

 

 

 

Wayne Austin 

Donna Quetsch 

Derek Webb 

Vice Mayor Anderson 

Mayor Pillion 

  

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

D. PRAYER  

E. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (VIDEO 5:56 – 6:20) 

 

On motion of Mr. Webb, seconded by Mr. Austin, approved the agenda as presented. 

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

F. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES (VIDEO 6:21 – 6:55) 

• September 5, 2023 

• September 21, 2023 

 

On motion of Mrs. Quetsch, seconded by Vice Mayor Anderson, approved the September 

5, 2023, and September 21, 2023, minutes as presented.  

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 



- 89 - 

October 3, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

    Mrs. Quetsch                           Aye 

                      Mr. Webb                                   Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson              Aye  

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS (VIDEO 6:57 - 10:45) 

• Eddie Copenhaver 

 

H. PROCLAMATIONS  (VIDEO 10:45 – 16:02) 

 

1.   Proclamation recognizing October 8 - 14, 2023, as Fire Prevention Week 

      "Cooking safely starts with YOU.  Pay attention to fire prevention." 

 

Mr. Austin read the Proclamation into record.  Mayor Pillion presented members of the 

Abingdon Fire Department with a framed proclamation.  

 

I. PUBLIC HEARING (VIDEO 16:05 – 25:45) 

 

1.  Proposed zoning map amendment to rezone the following structures/parcels from B-1 Limited 

     Business and B-2 General Business to OH Old & Historic Tax parcels consisting of 8.584 acres. 

 

121 Railroad Street (Parcel 013-1-120G)  0.38 acres 

123 Railroad Street (Parcel 013-1-120F)   0.19 acres 

124 Park Street (Parcel 013-1-120G)    0.38 acres 

128 Park Street (Parcel 013-1-120F1)   0.201 acres 

301 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-72)   0.116 acres 

303 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-73A)   0.13 acres 

304 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-87)   0.63 acres 

309 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-74)   0.210 acres 

314 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-89)   0.25 acres 

315 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-75)   0.191 acres 

322 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-88)   0.275 acres 

324 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-88)   0.275 acres 

Parcel 013-1-76                                     0.33 acres 

332 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-84)   0.64 acres 

335 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-78)   0.21 acres 

341 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-79)   0.35 acres 

343 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-80)   0.63 acres 

350 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-83)   0.63 acres 

360 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-82A)   0.22 acres 

370 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-82)   0.58 acres 

371 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-1-81)   0.241 acres 

380 E. Main Street (Parcel 014-1-9)    0.51 acres 

385 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-5-6)    0.35 acres 



- 90 - 

October 3, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

387 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-5-7)    0.34 acres 

395 E. Main Street (Parcel 013-5-7)    0.34 acres 

401 E. Main Street (Parcel 014-1-8)    0.33 acres 

402 E. Main Street (Parcel 014-1-10)   0.29 acres 

403 E. Main Street (Parcel 014-1-8)    0.33 acres 

110 Deadmore Street (Parcel 014-1-8)   0.33 acres 

115 Deadmore Street (Parcel 014-1-9)   0.51 acres 

118 Deadmore Street (Parcel 014-1-10)   0.29 acres 

 

Assistant Town Manager and Director of Community Development Mayana Rice provided 

the Council with information pertaining to the proposed zoning map amendment.  Mrs. Rice said 

that the Comprehensive Plan supports the proposed change. 

 

Mayor Pillion opened the public hearing. Byrum Geisler spoke in support of the proposed 

zoning amendment.  Hearing no additional comments, Mayor Pillion closed the public hearing. 

 

J. RESOLUTIONS 

K. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES  (VIDEO 25:45 – 29:08) 

1.    An Ordinance to amend the Zoning Map Classification for Parcel Numbers  013-1-120F, 

013-1-120F1, 013-1-120G, 013-1-72, 013-1-73A, 013-1-74, 013-1-75, 013-1-76, 013-1-78, 

013-1-79, 013-1-80, 013-1-81, 013-1-82, 013-1-82A, 013-1-83, 013-1-84, 013-1-87, 013-1-

88, 013-1-89, 013-5-6, 013-5-7, 014-1-8, 014-1-9, 014-1-10 generally located at 124 Park 

Street, 128 Park Street, 121 Railroad Street, 123 Railroad Street, Eastern 300 Block, 401 E. 

Main Street, 402 E. Main Street, 403 E. Main Street, 110 Deadmore Street, 115 Deadmore 

Street, and 118 Deadmore Street Abingdon, VA from B-1 Limited Business District and B-2 

General Business District to OH Old & Historic District - Mayana Rice, Assistant Town 

Manager and Director of Community Development 

 

On motion of Vice Mayor Anderson, seconded by Mr. Webb, approved the Ordinance as 

presented and waived the second reading. 

 

Discussion ensued.   

 

The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch                           Aye 

                      Mr. Webb                                   Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson              Aye  

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

Mayor Pillion discussed how ordinances were handled.    

 

L. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCES  



- 91 - 

October 3, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

M. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS  

N. NEW BUSINESS  

      1.  Presentation on behalf of The Barter Theatre (VIDEO 29:10 – 39:06) 

 

           Producing Artistic Director Katy Brown provided the Council with an update, including an 

increase of 25,000 more visitors compared to 2022. 

 

  

 2.  Update regarding Johnston Memorial Hospital, Ballad Health (VIDEO 39:08 – 58:57) 

 

     Chief Executive Officer of Bristol Regional Medical Center John Jeter, and Administrator and 

Chief Operating Officer for Johnston Memorial Hospital Bryan Mullins provided Council with 

an update.   Mr. Webb thanked them for working with the Town on the inclusive playground 

project.   

 

O. OLD BUSINESS   

P. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM TOWN MANAGER  

 (VIDEO 59:03 – 1:03:55) 

 

 Town Manager Mike Cochran discussed the banner poles and the Preston Street proposed 

water problem. Mr. Cochran also complimented the Tourism staff and the Barter Theatre.   He 

also advised the Council that Betsy White with the William King Museum of Art has agreed to 

be the Town’s representative for VA250. 

 

On motion of Mr. Webb, seconded by Vice Mayor Anderson, appointed Betsy White to be 

the Town’s representative for VA250. 

 

The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch                           Aye 

                      Mr. Webb                                   Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson              Aye  

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

Q. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS (VIDEO 1:03:57 – 1:10:53) 

 

 Vice Mayor Anderson recognized Rick and Susan Humphreys for Outstanding 

Preservation Achievement Award by Preservation Virginia.  Emmitt Yeary, Byrum Geisler, Janet 

Woolwine, David and Jill Dalton, Nathan and David Burg, Alex Martin and Will Johnson also 

received recognition for preserving Abingdon’s history.    

 



- 92 - 

October 3, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

 Mr. Webb said had an opportunity to visit the car show supporting Kim Andis fundraiser 

and it was a great turnout, with approximately $6,000 raised.  He reminded everyone that the 

Townwide Trick or Treat is set for October 28 and the Historic Preservation Day on October 12.   

 

Mayor Pillion reminded everyone regarding the October 14th day of service and gave some 

information regarding VA250. 

 

 

R. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMITTEES (VIDEO 1:10:56 – 1:31:12) 

      1.  Veterans Advisory Board  

       - Appointment to fill three new positions created by Town Council 

 2.  Sinking Spring Cemetery Committee 

      -Appointment to fill the unexpired term of Richard Morgan 

      3.  Infrastructure Advisory Committee 

           -Appointment to fill the expired term of Janet Woolwine 

 

On motion of Mayor Pillion, seconded by Mr. Webb, to convene in closed session as 

permitted by Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) for the purpose of considering 

applications for appointment for positions on the Veterans Advisory Board, Sinking Spring 

Cemetery, and Infrastructure Advisory Committee. 

  

 The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch                           Aye 

                      Mr. Webb                                  Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson              Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

 On motion of Mr. Webb, seconded by Mr. Austin to reconvene in open session. 

 

 The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch                           Aye 

                      Mr. Webb                                  Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson              Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

Mr. Webb moved that the Town Council certify that in closed session just concluded, 

nothing was discussed except the matter or matters specifically identified in the motion to 



- 93 - 

October 3, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

convene in closed session and lawfully permitted to be discussed under the provision of the 

Virginia Freedom of Information Act cited in that motion. 

 The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin I so certify 

    Mrs. Quetsch                        I so certify 

                      Mr. Webb                             I so certify 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson         I so certify 

                      Mayor Pillion I so certify 

 

 On motion of Mrs. Quetsch, seconded by Mr. Webb, appointed John Lentz, Vickie 

Bennett and Cade Parks to the Veterans Advisory Board, and Carl Maiden to the Sinking 

Spring Cemetery Committee.   

  

The roll call vote was as follows:  

 

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

          Council requested that position for Infrastructure Advisory Committee be readvertised. 

 

S. CLOSED SESSION  

  

Mayor Pillion declared the meeting adjourned. 

            

     ___________________________________  

     Mayor Amanda Pillion 

_______________________________ 

Kimberly Kingsley, Clerk 

 

 



- 94 - 

October 19, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

TOWN OF ABINGDON 

COUNCIL MEETING 

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2023 – 2:30 pm 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS – MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 

 The meeting of the Abingdon Town Council was held on Thursday, October 19, 2023, at 

2:30 pm in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building. 

 

A. WELCOME – Mayor Pillion  

B. ROLL CALL  

 

Members of Council Present: 

 

 

 

 

Members of Council Absent: 

 

Wayne Austin 

Donna Quetsch 

Vice Mayor Anderson 

Mayor Pillion 

 

Derek Webb 

 

 

 

 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (VIDEO 6:29 – 7:18) 

 

On motion of Mr. Austin, seconded by Vice Mayor Anderson, amended agenda motion 

for a closed session under Item Q, Closed Session, to consider applications for 

appointments to the Infrastructure Advisory Committee pursuant to the Code of 

Virginia, 1950, as amended, Section 2.2-3711(A)(1), and approved as amended. 

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Absent 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS (VIDEO 7:19 – 10:33) 

• Eddie Copenhaver 

F. PROCLAMATIONS  (VIDEO 10:39 – 20:00) 

 

1.  Proclamation recognizing November 2023 as Veteran and Military Families Month  



- 95 - 

October 19, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

 Mr. Austin read the Proclamation into record.   Mayor Pillion presented the framed 

Proclamation to Kyle Craig, member of the Veterans Advisory Board. 

 

2.  Proclamation supporting October as National Breast Cancer Awareness Month 

 

 Mrs. Quetsch read the Proclamation into the record. 

 

3.  Proclamation in support of Red Ribbon Week, “Be Kind to Your Mind.” 

 

 Mayor Pillion read the Proclamation into the record and Vice Mayor Anderson presented 

a framed Proclamation to the representatives. 

 

G. PUBLIC HEARING  

H. RESOLUTIONS 

I.  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES 

J. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCES 

K. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS (VIDEO 20:18 – 23:53) 

       1.  Consideration of bids for emergency sewer repairs to the 900 block of West Main Street –  

             Michael Surrett, Director of Public Works  

  

Director of Public Works Michael Surrett said the bids for the emergency sewer repairs were 

opened this morning, with Little B Construction providing the lowest bid of $89,883.15 and 

recommended Council accept this bid.    

 

On motion by Mrs. Quetsch, seconded by Vice Mayor Anderson, accepted the bid from 

Little B Construction for emergency sewer repairs. 

 

The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Absent 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                            Mayor Pillion     Aye 

 

L. NEW BUSINESS (VIDEO 23:54 – 26:43) 

1.  Abingdon Farmer’s Market annual update – David McLeish, Manager 

 

Abingdon Farmer’s Market Manager David McLeish 520 children were provided with 

$10 to purchase items and applied for $10,000 for the 2024 year.   He stated approximately 1000 

to 1200 customers attend the market on Saturday morning.  He thanked the Town for its 

continued support.    

 



- 96 - 

October 19, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

 

 

  

M. OLD BUSINESS   

N. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM TOWN MANAGER  

 (VIDEO 27:09 – 30:07)  

 

1. Update regarding Brown Edwards audit 

 

Director of Finance Steve Trotman provided information to the Council regarding the audit 

and recently discovered that a Federal single audit would be required.   Mr. Trotman requested 

the Council to consider the Planning Communication Letter and the Updated Engagement Letter 

as the fee increased by $4,000. 

 

On motion by Mr. Austin, seconded by Mrs. Quetsch, accepted the Planning 

Communication Letter and the Updated Engagement Letter as presented. 

 

The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Absent 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                            Mayor Pillion     Aye 

 

2. Tourism update (VIDEO 30:10 – 42:50) 

 

Tonya Triplett, Director of Tourism and Economic Development and Chad Thompson, 

Marketing Coordinator provided the Council with events occurring in the Town. 

 

(VIDEO 42:50 – 45:38) 

 Town Manager Mike Cochran stated that he would like to have a “Plumb Alley Day” everyday 

in the Town.   He thanked Michael Surrett, the Public Works Department, and The Meadows 

staff for keeping the Town looking wonderful.   He said the Town Manager’s report would be 

posted by the end of the month.      

 

 Mr. Cochran also stated that he worked with VDOT to address the problem of tractor-trailers 

turning onto Country Club Drive.  (VIDEO 48:32 – 49:38) 

 

O. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS (VIDEO 45:38 – 52:12) 

 

  Mrs. Quetsch said the staff does an amazing job and spoke of several projects discussed 

during the Infrastructure Advisory Committee.    



- 97 - 

October 19, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

Vice Mayor Anderson announced the Historic Preservation Day went well and Mayana 

Rice, the Community Development department and Martha Washington Inn did great.    

 

Mr. Austin also agreed with Mrs. Quetsch remarks regarding keeping the Town lovely.   

He reminded everyone that the Veterans Day Ceremony will be on November 11th at 11:00 am 

and the Veterans Memorial Park Foundation will be bringing preliminary plans to the Town 

Council regarding a Memorial Wall.   

 

Mayor Pillion thanked everyone for participating in the Day of Service, as it was very 

successful. 

 

P. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMITTEES (VIDEO 52:22 – 1:07:42) 

 

On motion by Mrs. Quetsch, seconded by Mr. Austin, to go into closed session pursuant to 

the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) for the purpose of 

considering applications for appointment to the Infrastructure Advisory Board. 

 

The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Absent 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                            Mayor Pillion     Aye 

  

 On motion of Mrs. Quetsch, seconded by Mr. Austin to reconvene in open session. 

 

 The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch                           Aye 

                      Mr. Webb                                  Absent 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson              Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

Mrs. Quetsch moved that the Town Council certify that in closed session just 

concluded, nothing was discussed except the matter or matters specifically identified 

in the motion to convene in closed session and lawfully permitted to be discussed 

under the provision of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act cited in that motion. 

 The roll call vote was as follows:  

  



- 98 - 

October 19, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

 Mr. Austin I so certify 

    Mrs. Quetsch                        I so certify 

                      Mr. Webb                             Absent 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson         I so certify 

                      Mayor Pillion I so certify 

 

 

On motion of Mrs. Quetsch, seconded by Vice Mayor Anderson, appointed Otey 

Dudley to the Infrastructure Advisory Committee.   

  

The roll call vote was as follows:  

 

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Absent 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

Q. CLOSED SESSION  

  

Mayor Pillion declared the meeting adjourned. 

            

     ___________________________________  

     Mayor Amanda Pillion 

_______________________________ 

Kimberly Kingsley, Clerk 

 

 

 







































































































 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE COUNCIL’S SUPPORT FOR NAMING THE 

INTERSTATE 81 BRIDGE OVER CUMMINGS STREET (EXIT 17) 

THE MASTER FIREFIGHTER CAMERON B. CRAIG MEMORIAL BRIDGE AND 

PETITIONING THE VIRGINIA COMMONWEALTH TRANSPORATION BOARD TO 

CONCUR WITH THIS DECISION 

 

WHEREAS  ̧Cameron B. Craig was born on June 3, 2003; and  

WHEREAS  ̧Cameron B. Craig graduated from Trigg Street Christian Academy; and 

WHEREAS  ̧Cameron B. Craig joined the Abingdon Fire Department on May 27, 2022; 

and 

WHEREAS, Cameron B. Craig succumbed to injuries when the Abingdon Fire Department 

truck he was a passenger in crashed while responding to a call on Thursday, October 19, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, Cameron B. Craig lived a life of dedication, even at 20 years old; and  

WHEREAS, Cameron B. Craig had an unwavering passion to serve others, especially by 

working with the Abingdon Fire Department.  

WHEREAS, Cameron B. Craig responded to countless emergencies, risking his life to 

protect and save the lives of others.  At the same time, his bravery and dedication to keeping our 

community safe was a testament to his Christian character.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Abingdon Town Council:  

1. Recognizes the many contributions of Master Firefighter Craig to the Town of 

Abingdon, Washington County, and the Commonwealth of Virginia; and 

2. Expresses our condolences to the family and many friends of Firefighter Craig; and 

3. Supports the General Assembly’s actions to name the Interstate 81 Bridge over 

Cummings Street in memory of Master Firefighter Cameron B. Craig; and 

4. Declares its support, as a lasting memorial of Fallen Firefighter Craig, for the designation 

of the Interstate 81 Bridge over Cummings Street (Exit 17), the “Master Firefighter Cameron B. 

Craig Memorial Bridge”, and for the installation of appropriate signage to make the designation 

visible to motorists travelling on both Cummings Street and Interstate 81 (Exit 17) and urges the 

Virginia Commonwealth Transportation Board to promptly concur with this designation. 

 

 

 



The undersigned Clerk of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia (the “Town”), hereby certifies 

that the foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of an ordinance duly adopted at a meeting of 

the Council held on November 13, 2023. I hereby certify that such meeting was a regularly 

scheduled meeting and that, during the consideration of the foregoing ordinance, a quorum was 

present. I further certify that the minutes of meeting was a regularly scheduled meeting and that, 

during the consideration of the foregoing ordinance, a quorum was present. I further certify that 

the minutes of such meeting reflect the attendance of the members and the voting on the foregoing 

ordinance was as follows:  

MEMBERS  ATTENDANCE  VOTE 

Amanda Pillion, Mayor   

Dwyane Anderson Vice Mayor   

Donna Quetsch   

Derek Webb   

Wayne Austin    

 

WITNESS MY HAND and the seal of the Town of Abingdon as of November 13, 2023.  

 

(SEAL)  

 

             

Kimberly Kingsley, Clerk 

 

 

 

 















































































2023-5207

WATER SPLASH

WATER SPLASH
PROJECT PROPOSAL

Abingdon Sports Complex

Splash Pad System Conversion



Carolina Recreation and Design
344 Rolling Hills Road Suite 201
Mooresville, NC  28117

704-664-1833
info@carolina-recreation.com
www.carolina-recreation.com

Estimate  2023-
3186

ADDRESS SHIP TO

Town of Abingdon
Mayana Rice
133 W Main St
Abingdon, VA 24210

Town of Abingdon
78 Cook St
Abingdon, VA 24210

DATE
10/24/2023

TOTAL
$150,000.00

EXPIRATION 
DATE

11/24/2023

NOTES
40% dep/30% ship/30% net 30

DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Water Splash Water Splash 2023-5207 includes the 

following:

- 2,500 Gallon Fiberglass Holding Tank

- Water Recirculation System Enclosure

with Double Door

- Water Recirculation System

- Rain Diverter L Size

1 Included Included

Freight Freight to Abingdon, VA 1 Included Included

Engineering - Other Engineering 1 Included Included

Permitting Health Permitting Cost 1 Included Included



DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Labor - Splash pad installation Recirculation System Upgrade includes the 

following:

- Work, material, drawings needed to

convert fresh water splash park project to a

re-use system, where water used is splash

captured in a storage tank, and reused.

- Excavation and installation of storage tank

- Installation of rain diverter system

- Concrete pad under recirculation system

enclosure

- Installation of recirculation system

equipment

- Connection between recirculation system /

storage tank (pvc connections)

- Fresh water connection from current

system to storage tank (1’’ pvc line)

- Installation of equipment room on concrete

surface

- Low voltage connection between current

splash park controller to new recirculation

system

controller.

- Connection of recirculation system pump to

manifold (pvc pipe connection)

- Grounding recirculation system to

grounding of splash park connection at

manifold area.

- Testing, and training of users.

- Start-Up

- Landscaping repair

- Storage

1 Included Included

SUBTOTAL 150,000.00

TAX 0.00

TOTAL $150,000.00
THANK YOU.

Accepted By Accepted Date



About Water Splash, Inc.

WATER SPLASH

WATER SPLASH

www.watersplashnet.com
(800) 936-3430

Water Splash, Inc. is an innovative water playground equipment manufacturer founded in 

2003 by a team of engineers who put their skills at the heart of their enterprise, with an 

emphasis on continuous product improvement through research and development. Our 

team has a total of 15 years experience in the design and manufacture of splash park 

equipment. We provide products for splash pads, spray parks/spray grounds and 

swimming pools. We have a strong engineering and customer care group that will provide 

the technical support you need at every stage of your project. Our durable and reliable 

products come with timely and personalized customer service, and they’re factory 

assembled and tested to reduce your installation costs. Backed by some of the strongest 

product warranties in the industry and an unparalleled safety record, Water Splash is 

rapidly becoming the benchmark for top quality splash pad products.



WATER SPLASH

Key Personnel

www.watersplashnet.com
(800) 936-3430

Engineering Manager - Murat SINAV / msinav@watersplashnet.com

Our project team has decades of experience in designing, manufacturing, and building 

spray parks and aquatic facilities, moreoever we will continue to design and construct 

with a Safety First emphasis for this project. Information on our teams experience with 

Safety and Management is included in the appendix A. A preliminary safety plan can 

be submitted upon request.

We look forward to working with you.

Gokhan Celik 

Water Splash,

gcelik@watersplashnet.com 
(800) 936-3430 

Aquatic & Mechanical Engineer - Mehdi MOUSAVI / mmousavi@watersplashnet.com

CEO & Project Manager - Gokhan CELIK / gcelik@watersplashnet.com

Co-Partner & Director of Sales-Design - Zafer INANC / zinanc@watersplashnet.com

Sales Specialist - Serap ACAR / sacar@watersplashnet.com

Production & Planning Manager - Abdul Jamil HALIMI / jhalimi@watersplashnet.com 

Construction Manager - Milan PETROVA  / mpetrova@watersplashnet.com

Customer Service & Accounting - Maya PETROVA  / mpetrova@watersplashnet.com



WATER SPLASH

Project Scope

www.watersplashnet.com
(800) 936-3430

Water Splash offers its expertise in splash park design, manufacturing and installation for 

your project. Our approach is to work with customer directly and get customer’s input for 

each stage of the project. Therefore, within the first week of project approval, we 

schedule an online meeting with customer’s representatives and our project manager. 

* Identify if there is any changes on proposed splash park layout,

The goal of this meeting is: 

* Finalize product list and colors for splash park, List each departments and contacts for

* Construction Permit / If Required *Plumbing /Water Permit –Approval / If
Required Electrical connection details / Permit if needed

Second stage is our production stage which is around 6-7 weeks. Between production 

completion and construction start, we will setup an onside meeting with customer’s 

representative to review final construction plans along with permit application status. 

After production is completed, our project manager will be onsite to receive all parts and 

start excavation, setting up anchor bases, placing and leveling products, grounding each 

product to mechanical room, plumbing each product to manifold lines, backfilling and 

surface concrete pouring. We will have pressure testing of plumbing connections before 

concrete is poured in order to make sure pipes withstand working pressure of Splash 

Park.

Last item is to commission Splash Park to owner by training customer’s representative 

for daily day usage, and maintenance procedures.

Wishing to be a solution partner for your project.

January 16, 2023



WATER SPLASH

Water Splash Engineering

www.watersplashnet.com
(800) 936-3430

Water Splash products are designed and 
manufactured to meet two basic criteria; fun and 
safety. Only the finest materials are used in the 
construction process, to ensure that maximum 
safeguards are incorporated into every design.

To this end, all manufacturing and tooling takes place in-
house, and all products conform to or exceed ASTM 
F1487, ASTM F2461, SS457 and CSA Z614-07 standards.

Our in-house engineering and manufacturing expertise also 
provide our customers with another advantage: complete 
customization, to suit any and all of their needs.



WATER SPLASH

Thank You

www.watersplashnet.com
(800) 936-3430

To: Splash Park Evaluation Committee,

Thank you for the opportunity given to submit Water Splash, Inc’s unique splash park layout 

proposal for your community. Water Splash has over 15 years experience in designing, building 

and installing splash parks throughout the US, Canada, Europe and many other countries.

We create your unique splash park design by considering: safety, play value, budget and 

aesthetics.

Our products are made of durable stainless steel material, which meet or exceed all requirements.

ASTM F-1487, ASTM F2461 (USA) 

CSA Z-614-07 (CANADA) 

EN 1176 (EU) 

AS685 (AU)  Electrical Components 

European Union directives and standards

We look forward to discussing our proposal with you, ensuring all the special requirements within 

your community are met beyond satisfaction.

We appreciate your consideration and will always go that exra mile to earn your business.

Kind regards,

Gokhan CELIK

Water Splash

gcelik@watersplashnet.com 

 (800) 936 - 3430



W
AT

ER
 S

PL
AS

H
 IN

C
w

w
w

.w
at

er
sp

la
sh

ne
t.c

om
(8

00
) 9

36
-3

43
0

SP
LA

SH
 P

AR
K

Cu
rr

en
t 6

'’ 
Se

w
er

 L
in

e

N
ew

 
Ra

in
 D

iv
er

te
r o

n 
dr

ai
n 

lin
e

25
00

 G
al

lo
ns

 
W

at
er

 S
to

ra
ge

 T
an

k

Fr
es

h 
W

at
er

 L
in

e
Cu

rr
en

t C
on

ne
ct

io
n

Cu
rr

en
t M

an
ifo

ld

1
3

2 Pu
m

p 
Su

ct
io

ns
Bu

tt
er

fly
 

Va
lv

e

1'
'F

re
sh

 W
at

er
 L

in
e

W
at

er
 R

ec
irc

ul
at

io
n 

Sy
st

em

W
at

er
 R

ec
irc

ul
at

io
n 

Sy
st

em
M

aj
or

 C
om

po
ne

nt
s

1-
Fe

at
ur

es
 P

um
p:

 H
ay

w
ar

d 
Tr

is
ta

r 
5H

P 
23

0V
AC

2-
Ci

rc
ul

at
io

n 
Pu

m
p:

 H
ay

w
ar

d 
Tr

is
ta

r 
2H

P 
23

0 
VA

C
3-

Sa
nd

 F
ilt

er



6'

7'

14
'

C
he

m
ic

al
 T

an
ks

V
au

lt 
D

im
en

sio
ns

40
"(h

) x
 2

0"
(w

) x
 4

0"
(L

)

Re
ci

rc
ul

at
io

n 
Sy

st
em

 V
au

lt 
D

im
en

sio
ns

7'
 (h

) x
 6

' (
w

) x
 1

4'
 (L

)

D
oo

rs
 : 

80
" x

 3
6"

' w
ith

 re
m

ov
ab

le
 se

ct
io

n 
in

 b
et

w
ee

n.

St
ru

ct
ur

e:
 C

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 o

f n
on

 c
or

ro
siv

e 
ga

lv
an

ize
d

 se
ct

io
ns

 st
ee

l
Pa

ne
ls 

(A
ll s

id
e 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
d

oo
rs

) :
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 o

f s
te

el
 re

in
fo

rc
ed

 
fib

er
gl

as
s w

ith
 a

ir 
flo

w
 o

pe
nn

in
gs

 in
 b

ot
h 

sid
es

C
he

m
ic

al
 T

an
ks

 V
au

lt:
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 o

f n
on

 c
or

ro
siv

e 
al

um
in

um
 fr

am
e 

w
ith

 fi
be

rg
la

ss
 p

an
el

s. 
d

oo
rs

 fo
r t

hi
s v

au
lt 

m
us

t h
av

e 
pa

d
 lo

ck
.

A
nc

ho
rin

g 
Sy

st
em

: W
at

er
 S

pl
as

h 
su

pp
lie

s 3
/8

" s
ta

in
le

ss
 st

ee
l a

nc
ho

r 
bo

lts
.

Re
m

ov
ab

le
 S

ec
tio

n
fo

r w
id

e 
op

en
in

gs
 

E

2

DCBA F

B FDA EC

3
4

7
5

6
8

1

6
2

1
5

3
4

7
8

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n 
M

et
ho

d:
   

   
  T

HI
RD

 A
NG

LE

W
AT

ER
 S

PL
AS

H

1:
8

D
ra

w
in

g 
Sc

al
e:

C
he

ck
ed

/A
pp

ro
ve

d 
D

at
e:

D
ra

w
n 

D
at

e:
U

nl
es

s 
O

th
er

w
is

e 
St

at
ed

:
Li

ne
ar

 T
ol

.: 
2,

 A
ng

ul
ar

 T
ol

.: 
1

Al
l D

im
en

si
on

s:
 m

m
IN

TE
R

PR
ET

 D
IM

 A
N

D
 T

O
L.

 P
ER

 A
SM

E 
Y1

4.
5-

20
09 kg

D
ra

w
n 

by
:

A
3

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

C
he

ck
ed

/A
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

:

M
at

er
ia

l:

1 
of

 1
 

Ap
pr

ox
 W

ei
gh

t:

Le
ga

l O
w

ne
r:

R
ev

is
io

n:

Sh
ee

t:

Pa
rt 

N
um

be
r:

RE
C

IR
C

UL
A

TIO
N

 S
YS

TE
M

 V
A

UL
T

14
 F

EE
T 

C
US

TO
M

A
.J

A
M

IL
18

.1
2.

20
20

-
-



RECIRCULATION SYSTEM

WATER SPLASH
www.watersplashnet.com

(800) 936-3430

FRESH WATER TANK MANIFOLD SPLASH PAD

DRAIN BOXTANKFILTER

Control Panel Chemical  Controller

zÀĂÓ BêûĤ×Ę

Manifold

Pressure Gauge
Air Valve 

    1 1/2'' Ball Valve 

 1 1/2'' Selenoid Valve 

v×ÍêĘÍĨûÀĤêĉĂ sĨāĕ 

Features Pump 

2'' Commercial 
Multiport valve

Splash park with Water Re-Capture system, re-
uses water utilized at splash park by filtration 
and sanitizing constantly. This system is similar 
to swimming pool water sanitization system.
Engineered to meet state / provincial health 
codes for sweimming to pool/splash pads.

We offer tank sizes ( 1320,2500 and 4000 ) 
Gallons
with 1" float valve for fresh water intake.

Stainless steel manifold

Electric controller

Factory assembled and tested pumps/sand filter 
and chemical controller kit.

Optional: UV

PALM TREE
LONGHORN BUCKETS

AQUA LOOP

POWER CIRCULAR SHOWER

WATER INLET 1 1/2"ACTIVATOR WIRES 3/4

DRAIN LINE 6"

ACTIVATOR

DRAIN BOX

CACTUS



Water Storage Tank

WATER SPLASH
www.watersplashnet.com

(800) 936-3430

Water Storage Tank constructed with noncorrosive fiberglass, designed for durability and 

watertight storage. Unite complete with locking hatchway, internal safety ladder and all required 

fittings based on project requirements.

Electronic level sensor control available as a optional item.

Assembly process with anchoring bolts on 3000 psi concrete. Water Splash inc. shall supply 

hardware set for anchoring system.

Recirculation Pump  Suction

Features Pump Suction

Tank Drain

Water Level Sensor (Optional)

Return Line

Splash Pad Drain Line

Over flow

Stainless S. Ladders

Skimmer Connection (Optional)

Fresh Water inlet with 
floating valve

Aluminum Cover

Check Valve

Check Valve

Fixing Connection

Water Tank Dimensions 

Volume -  Gallons (Ton) 1320 ( 5 ) 2500 ( 9.5 ) 4000 ( 15 ) 

Height 5'-7" (170 cm) 5'-7" (170 cm) 5'-7" (170 cm) 

Width 

Long 

6'-8" (205 cm)

12’-9” (390 cm) 

6'-8" (205 cm)

15’-11” (485 cm) 

6'-8" (205 cm)

19’-8” (600 cm) 



4
3

2
c

m

 
[
1
4

'
-
2

"
]

6
0

0
c

m

[
1
9

'
-
8

"
]

E
X

C
A

V
A

T
I
N

G
 
B

O
R

D
E

R

2
0

8
c

m

 
[
6

'
-
1
0

"
]

3
0

0
c

m

 
[
9

'
-
1
0

"
]

4
0

0
c

m

 
[
1
3

'
-
2

"
]

2
5

c
m

 
[
1
0

"
]

9
0

c
m

[
3

'
]

2
5

c
m

 
[
1
0

"
]

G
R

A
N

U
L

A
R

 
A

N
D

 
G

R
O

U
N

D

A
L

L
 
S

I
D

E
S

 
O

F
 
T

A
N

K

S
A

N
D

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 
A

R
O

U
N

D

T
A

N
K

 
C

O
V

E
R

4
'
'

1
0

c
m

6
'
'
 
V

e
n

t
 
P

i
p

e

W
i
t
h

 
S

c
r
e

e
n

L
o

c
k

a
b

l
e

A
c

c
e

s
s

 
D

o
o

r

(
2

4
"
x

2
4

'
'
)

(
Ø
6
0
x
Ø
6
0
)
c
m

4
4

7
c

m

[
1
4

'
-
8

"
]

2
'
'
T

A
N

K
 
D

R
A

I
N

2
0

0
c

m

 
[
6

'
-
7

"
]

T
u

r
n

b
u

c
k

l
e

6
"
 
D

r
a

i
n

 
L

i
n

e

W
a

t
e

r
 
L

e
v

e
l
 
S

e
n

s
o

r

W
A

T
E

R
 
T

A
N

K

C
O

M
P

A
C

T
E

D
 
G

R
A

N
U

L
A

R

L
u

g

L
A

D
D

E
R

3
/
4

"
 
F

r
e

s
h

 
W

a
t
e

r
 
L

i
n

e

6
"
 
S

u
c

t
i
o

n

3
"
 
S

u
c

t
i
o

n3
"
 
S

u
c

t
i
o

n

6
"
 
S

u
c

t
i
o

n

3
/
4

"
 
F

r
e

s
h

W
a

t
e

r
 
L

i
n

e

W
a

t
e

r
 
L

e
v

e
l

S
e

n
s

o
r

3
"
 
R

e
t
u

r
n

L
i
n

e

3
"
 
S

k
i
m

m
e

r

S
k

i
m

m
e

r

N
O

 
T

R
A

F
F

I
C

 
L

O
A

D

2
4

6
c

m

 
[
8

'
-
1
"
]

4
6

c
m

[
1
'
-
6

"
]

2
0

0
c

m

[
6

'
-
7

"
]

3
"

O
v

e
r
f
l
o

w

2
5

0
0

 
G

A
L

L
O

N
S

 
T

A
N

K
 
I
N

S
T

A
L

L
A

T
I
O

N

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 
N

O
:

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

D
A

T
E

:

M
.
K

O
C

A

R
E

V U
N

I
T

E
:

S
H

E
E

T
:

A

F
T

-
I
N

C
H

W
AT

ER
 S

PL
AS

H 
IN

C.
TH

IS
 D

RA
W

IN
G 

IS
 A

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
O

F 
W

AT
ER

 S
PL

AS
H 

IN
C.

 A
N

D 
IS

 N
O

T 
TO

 B
E 

RE
PR

O
DU

CE
D 

BY
AN

Y 
M

EA
N

S 
O

R 
U

SE
D 

TO
 F

U
RN

IS
H 

IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N

 T
o 

O
TH

ER
S 

W
IT

HO
U

T 
TH

E 
EX

PL
IC

IT
CO

N
SE

N
T 

O
F 

W
AT

ER
 S

PL
AS

H

2
0

2
1
-
4

7
6

1
1
7

-
1
0

-
2

0
2

2

B
a

y
f
r
o

n
t
 
S

p
l
a

s
h

 
P

a
r
k



 11'' 

 22.7'' 

 53'' 

 24" 

w
ith

 2
" F

la
ng

e
Fl

a
p 

Bu
tte

rfl
y 

V
a

lv
e

24
 V

ol
t S

um
p

 P
um

p

1

3

6"
6"

2"

2

Ba
se

 C
on

cr
et

e 
D

im
en

sio
ns

 : 
40

" x
 4

0"
 x

 8
" 

1-
 F

RO
M

 S
PL

A
SH

 P
A

RK
 (6

")
 

2-
 TO

 TA
N

K 
(6

")
3-

 S
TO

RM
 (2

")

Fi
xi

ng
 P

oi
nt

s
fo

r 3
/8

" S
.S

 h
a

rd
w

a
re

A

A

St
a

in
le

ss
st

ee
l C

on
ne

ct
io

n 
Br

a
ck

et
s

To
 T

a
nk

 (6
")

G
la

ss
 R

ei
nf

or
ce

d
 P

ol
ye

st
er

 B
od

y

Fr
om

 S
pl

a
sh

 P
a

rk
 

(6
")

To
 S

to
rm

 (2
")

2"
Fl

a
ng

e 
w

ith
 C

he
ck

 V
a

lv
e

6"
 

6"

2"

30
'' 

W
AT

ER
 S
PL
AS

H
01

-0
9-

20
22

Ra
in

 D
iv

er
te

r

E

2

DCBA F

B FDA EC

3
4

7
5

6
8

1

6
2

1
5

3
4

7

E.
YA

VU
Z

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n 
M

et
ho

d:
   

   
  T

HI
R

D 
A

NG
LE

1:
15

D
ra

w
in

g 
Sc

al
e:

C
he

ck
ed

/A
pp

ro
ve

d 
D

at
e:

8

Pa
rt 

N
um

be
r:

Sh
ee

t:

D
ra

w
n 

D
at

e:

IN
TE

R
PR

ET
 D

IM
AN

D
 T

O
L.

 P
ER

 A
SM

E 
Y1

4.
5-

20
09

D
ra

w
n 

by
:

A
3

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

C
he

ck
ed

/A
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

:

M
at

er
ia

l:

Ap
pr

ox
 W

ei
gh

t:

Le
ga

l O
w

ne
r:

R
ev

is
io

n:

U
nl

es
s 

O
th

er
w

is
e 

St
at

ed
:

Li
ne

ar
 T

ol
.: 

2,
 A

ng
ul

ar
 T

ol
.: 

1
Al

lD
im

en
si

on
s:

in
ch

R-
D

02



W
AT

ER
 S

PL
AS

H 
IN

C.
TH

IS
 D

RA
W

IN
G 

IS
 A

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
O

F 
W

AT
ER

 S
PL

AS
H 

IN
C.

 A
N

D 
IS

 N
O

T 
TO

BE
 R

EP
RO

DU
CE

D 
BY

 A
N

Y 
M

EA
N

S 
O

R 
U

SE
D 

TO
 F

U
RN

IS
H 

IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N

To
 O

TH
ER

S 
W

IT
HO

U
T 

TH
E 

EX
PL

IC
IT

 C
O

N
SE

N
T 

O
F 

W
AT

ER
 S

PL
AS

H

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
AM

E

U
N

IT

CM
SH

EE
T

DR
AW

N
 B

Y/
 D

AT
E

E.
YA

VU
Z

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
R.

RE
V

0.
1

W
A

TE
R 

TA
N

K 
PL

A
C

EM
EN

T

 S
TR

AI
N

ER
 B

AS
KE

T 
FO

R 
RA

IN
 D

IV
ER

TE
R 

D
ET

A
IL

Ba
se

 C
on

cr
et

e 
D

im
en

sio
ns

 : 
40

" x
 4

0"
 x

 8
"

HI
N

G
ED

 L
O

C
KA

BL
E 

A
C

C
ES

S 
C

O
V

ER
(A

L.
)

ST
RA

IN
ER

 B
A

SK
ET

RA
IN

 D
IV

ER
TE

R

C
O

N
C

RE
TE

 A
RO

UN
D

RA
IN

 D
IV

ER
TE

R 
C

O
V

ER

D
ET

A
IL

FR
O

N
T 

SI
D

E
TO

P 
SI

D
E

10
0c

m
(3

'-3
,3

7"
)

65
cm

(2
'-1

,5
9"

)
FR

O
N

T 
SI

D
E

TO
P 

SI
D

E

1
2

3
ST

O
RM



WATER SPLASH

Products Warranty 2023-5207 
Abingdon Sports Complex Splash Pad System Conversion

www.watersplashnet.com
(800) 936-3430

Water Splash Inc. gurantees that all products meet the specifications provided in the 

installation drawings and offers.

25 YEAR WARRANTY on stainless steel structures and workmanship, stainless steel 

anchoring systems and aluminum spheres, stainless steel Piping and Weldments. 

5 YEAR WARRANTY on Acetyl, Urethane/HPDE parts, spray nozzles and spray 

openings, high density polyethylene components, polyurethane components, stainless 

steel automated water distribution manifold, drain boxes and electrical enclosures.

2 YEAR WARRANTY on coatings (Airbrushed Graphics), powder coated, stainless steel 

hardware and moving parts, fiberglass components, seeflow polymers (polycarbonate 

materials), toe guards, piping, fittings, ball valves, pressure gauges, terminal blocks, PLC 

controller, time switchs, manual switches, transformers, breakers, electrical wiring, 

connections and on recirculation system workmanship, recirculation system pumps and 

filters are coverd by their manufacturer.  Please refer to their warranty documentation.

1 YEAR WARRANTY on all products and parts not listed above.

Warranty above is valid only if structures are installed or assembled as per Water Splash's 

installation instructions/drawings maintained according to maintenance manual and 

procedures, not subject to misuse, vandalis, operated under  normal use as per designed 

purpose or have not modified/repaired by unauthorized personnel.







Singapore • Chile • Turkey • Nigeria • Russia • Canaries • United Arab Emirates 

USA • Poland • Colombia • Spain • Reunion • Jordan • Canada • Hong Kong

WATERSPLASH INSTALLATIONS AROUND THE WORLD

Canada
Head Office & 

Factory

USA
Branch Office

Turkey
Factory

France
Branch Office

WATER SPLASH

USA/Canada (800) 936-3430
France +33 172 77 43 28
www.watersplashnet.com
info@watersplashnet.com

watersplashinc



https://digital-camscanner.onelink.me/P3GL/g26ffx3k


1 
 

 
 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
  
TO: ABINGDON TOWN COUNCIL 
 
FROM:  MAYANA RICE, ASSISTANT TOWN MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR COMPREHENSIVE 

SIGN PLAN 
 
PUBLICATION 
DATE:  NOVEMBER 6, 2023 
 
MEETING 
DATE:  NOVEMBER 13, 2023 
 
 
LOCATION:  COUNCIL CHAMBERS, TOWN HALL 
  133 WEST MAIN STREET, ABINGDON, VA 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Commonwealth of Virginia/Virginia Community College System (Owner) and Virginia 
Highlands Community College/Southwest Virginia Higher Education Center (Applicant) has 
requested approval of a Special Use Permit for a Comprehensive Sign Plan.  The 
Comprehensive Sign Plan also takes into account the Virginia Highlands Small Business 
Incubator, the Washington County Government Center and the Southwest Higher Education 
Center on the sign.   

A Comprehensive Sign Plan is allowed if approved by the Abingdon Planning Commission 
and Town Council per section 8-4-2-C of Article VIII Community Design Standards.   

The existing signage to undergo renovation is located near the intersection of Jonesboro Road 
and VHCC Drive, on VHCC Drive in the Town of Abingdon’s right-of-way.   

 

 

  



2 
 

VICINITY MAP: 

 

  



3 
 

ENTRANCE CORRIDOR: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
Street view of Jonesboro Road looking South 

Street view of Jonesboro Road looking North 



4 
 

ZONING MAP: 

 

 

  



5 
 

STAFF FINDINGS: 

1. Location. The proposed signage renovation is located near the intersection of 
Jonesboro Road and VHCC Drive. The existing signage is in the Town of Abingdon’s 
right-of-way. 

 
2. Background. This is an existing unfinished masonry freestanding sign structure and 

associated signage at the entrance to Virginia Highlands Community College on 
VHCC Drive.   
 

3. Access. Access to the site will be on VHCC Drive. 
 

4. Adjacent Land Uses/Zoning. The property where the sign is located is in the B-2 
(General Business) district.  Virginia Highlands Community College is located in OI 
(Office and Institutional) district.  However the additional signage tenants are also in 
a PTD (Planned Technology District) therefore allowing the project to apply for the 
Comprehensive Sign Plan.   

 
5. Applicable Requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Division 3 Special Use Permits. 
 
Section 3-4-1. Purpose and intent. 
 
A use requiring a special use permit is a use that may be appropriate in a zoning district, but 
because of its nature, extent, and external effects, requires special consideration of its location, 
design, extent and methods of operation before it can be deemed appropriate in the district and 
compatible with its surroundings. The purpose of this division is to establish procedures and 
standards for review and approval of special use permits that provide for such special 
consideration. 
 
The Town Council is responsible for the final motion for Special Use Permit requests.   

Division 4. Signs.  
 
Comprehensive Sign Plan.  
Section 8-4-2 Administration.  
(c) Special exceptions.  

(1) Comprehensive sign plan.  
a. Special exceptions to this article may be granted in B, M, and PTD Districts as 
a comprehensive sign plan approved by special use permit. Special exceptions to 
the maximum height requirements in this article shall not be permitted.  
b. The comprehensive sign plan is intended to promote consistency among signs 
within a development and enhance the compatibility of signs with the architectural 
and site design features within a development.  

https://ecode360.com/41428667#41428667
https://ecode360.com/41428668#41428668


6 
 

(2) Contents of plan.  
a. A comprehensive sign plan, which may be a written document or drawings 
adequate to depict the proposed signs, shall include:  

1. The proposed general locations for freestanding signs on a lot as well as 
the proposed location(s) for building signs on a building facade.  
2. Types of signs proposed.  
3. A listing of materials proposed for all sign structures and sign surfaces.  
4. The maximum number and maximum size of proposed signs.  
5. The type of illumination, if any, proposed for all signs, including whether 
internally illuminated or external illuminated and describing the type of 
light fixture proposed.  
6. A description of any ornamental structure upon which a sign face is 
proposed to be placed.  

(3) Amendment of plan.  
a. A comprehensive sign plan may be amended by submitting a revised 
comprehensive sign plan for consideration and determination through the special 
use permit process. Upon approval, the amended plan shall have the same force 
and effect as an approved comprehensive sign plan.  

A comprehensive sign plan can be used in situations when the applicants are looking for 
flexibility from the strict interpretation of the sign regulations.  The only standard that is not 
allowed to be flexible is the height.  In this situation the existing sign is not proposed to be 
taller than existing.  The flexibility is for the total size, setback and changeable square 
footage. 

Section 8-4-5. General. 

(a) Standards. 

(1) Any sign displayed in the Town of Abingdon, shall comply with: 

a. All provisions of this Article; 

b. All applicable provisions of the Uniform Statewide Building Code and all 
amendments thereto; and, 

c. All state and federal regulations pertaining to the display of signage. 

d. Sign area calculations. 

(2) The following method shall be utilized in the calculations of sign area: 

a. The sign area permitted under this Article is determined by measuring 
the entire face of the sign including any wall work incidental to its 
decoration but excluding support elements for the sole purpose of 
supporting the sign. 

b. For signs that are regular polygons or circles, the area shall be 
calculated by the mathematical formula for that polygon or circle. For signs 

https://ecode360.com/41428669#41428669
https://ecode360.com/41428670#41428670
https://ecode360.com/41428671#41428671
https://ecode360.com/41428672#41428672
https://ecode360.com/41428673#41428673
https://ecode360.com/41428674#41428674
https://ecode360.com/41428675#41428675
https://ecode360.com/41428676#41428676
https://ecode360.com/41428677#41428677
https://ecode360.com/41428678#41428678


7 
 

that are not regular polygons or circles, the sign area shall be calculated 
using the area within up to three rectangles that enclose the sign face. 

c. The surface area of any sign made up only of individual letters or figures 
shall include the space between such letters or figures. 

d. Whenever one sign contains information on both sides, sign area shall be 
calculated based on the largest sign face. Sides are not totaled. 

(b) Minimum setback. The minimum setback from any right-of-way, unless otherwise specified, is 
half (1/2) the height of the sign. 

 
The applicant proposes to renovate the existing freestanding sign with larger signage. 
However the actual structure will not be changing locations or height.  The Comprehensive 
Sign Plan is asking for flexibility to increase the sign square footage located within the 
required setback of the sign ordinance.  

 

(c) Illumination. 

(1) All permitted signs may be indirectly lighted. Non-residential signs within a residential 
district may be illuminated as outlined in Section 8-4-6. Signs within a Business or 
Industrial district may be internally lighted, unless such lighting is specifically prohibited 
in this Article. 

(2) No sign shall be illuminated in such a way that light may shine into on-coming traffic, 
affect highway safety, or shine directly into a residential dwelling unit zoned. 

(3) Any electrical sign shall display the required UL, ETL, CSA, or ULC label. 

(4) Illumination shall be no greater than 10,000 nits or foot candles from sunrise to sunset 
or 700 nits or foot candles from sunset to sunrise and be equipped with automatic 
brightness control which can dim the display brightness when ambient conditions exist. 

(5) Electronic service lines shall be underground. 

 
The new sign will include 4G cellular connectivity, custom steel mounting frame, and 
grounding kit. The double faced RGB display will have a RGB 281 trillion levels with 
brightness being 8,000 NIT’s +/- 5% and total LEDs 712,800. It will have a single phase of 
120V or 240V 50/60Hz with diming levels: 100 – auto and manual. The sign will also include 
character sizes being 2.2 inches and a horizontal viewing angle of 160 degrees.  

 
 
 
 



8 
 

(d) Changeable signs. 
 
(1) Within any business or industrial district, one freestanding or wall-mounted sign per 
lot may be replaced with a changeable message sign subject to the following 
requirements: 

 
a. Location, area, and height, requirements shall be the same as for freestanding 
or wall signs. 

 
b. The message shall not be changed more than once every 12 seconds, move, 
flash, or display animation, as prohibited in this article. 

 
c. Any changeable message sign that malfunctions, fails, or ceases to operate in 
its usual or normal programmed manner, thereby causing motion, movement, 
flashing or any other similar effects, shall be repaired, covered, or disconnected 
by the owner or operator of such sign within 24 hours of notice of violation. 

 
d. Light emitted from changeable signs shall not exceed 0.3 footcandles over 
ambient light. 

 
e. Existing nonconforming billboards cannot be converted to changeable signs. 

 

The existing electronic messaging display will be removed and replaced with a new double-
sided 7 ft. x 12 ft. electronic display (84 square feet).   

The Comprehensive Sign Plan is asking for flexibility to change “static signage” to 
additional Changeable Signage.  

 

Section 8-4-6. Districts. 

(a) District regulations 

(1) The following requirements shall apply in the designated district, as 
appropriate, to permitted uses by right and special uses as may be permitted, 
subject to all other requirements of this Ordinance. 

 (2) Sign area square footage limits are provided per sign unless specified as a 
total. Total area is calculated as an aggregate of all signs of that type. 

https://ecode360.com/41428729#41428729
https://ecode360.com/41428730#41428730
https://ecode360.com/41557567#41557567
https://ecode360.com/41557568#41557568
https://ecode360.com/41557569#41557569
https://ecode360.com/41557570#41557570
https://ecode360.com/41557566#41557566


9 
 

 

The existing cabinet signs will be removed and replaced with four single sided 3 ft. x 14 ft. 
aluminum extrusion cabinets (168 square feet)  and two single sided 8 ft. x 10 ft. aluminum 
extrusion  cabinets (160 square feet).  These six signs will have PAN faces and vinyl 
graphics.  

The Comprehensive Sign Plan is asking for flexibility from 60 total square feet to a total of 
412 square feet.  

 

The existing unfinished masonry freestanding sign structure is proposed to have a synthetic 
stucco applied and painted with the following colors: 

 

 

  

Table 8.4.6(C) Maximum Sign Dimensions: B-1, B-2, B-3, M-1, OI, and PTD 
Districts 

Sign Type Number Area Height 
1. Freestanding 1 per street frontage 60 square feet 15 feet,  



10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed 

Exis�ng  



11 
 

Section 44-3-4-3 of the Land Use Chapter of the Town’s Ordinance must be met when evaluating 
an approval or a denial.  

(1) Demonstrate that the proposed use, when complemented with additional measures, if 
any, will be in harmony with the purposes of the specific district in which it will be 
placed. 

Staff Findings:    

The request by VHCC to utilize the benefits of a Comprehensive Sign Plan has allowed the sign 
to be reviewed and conditions to be placed as needed.  

The specific districts that allow for Comprehensive Sign Plans are the B-2 (where the sign sits) 
and the PTD (where a portion of the signage’s tenants exist).  This joint sign and the message 
board promotes this area of the community and falls within the characteristics of the specific 
districts.   

B-2 - General Business. The purpose of the General Business District is to 
accommodate a wide range of retail, wholesale, service, and office uses that cater 
to the traveling public and serve the Town and the surrounding region. The 
District is designed to provide highly attractive and accessible shopping along 
principal highways, while avoiding the routing of traffic onto minor streets or 
through residential areas. 

Planned Technology District. The purpose of the Planned Technology 
Development (PTD) District is for high technology manufacturing and industrial 
uses. Supporting accessory uses and facilities, including offices, commercial 
establishments, and residential areas may also be permitted. The PTD District is 
intended to be designed with a park-like setting that complements surrounding 
land uses by means of appropriate siting of buildings, controlled access points, 
attractive and harmonious architecture, effective landscape buffering and 
common open space with scenic view easements. The district is intended to 
provide flexibility in design and site layout, allow latitude in combining different 
types of uses within a single development, and provide the developer with 
incentives to create an aesthetically pleasing, functional and environmentally 
friendly planned development. 

(2) Demonstrate that there will be no undue adverse impact on the surrounding 
neighborhood in terms of public health, safety or general welfare and show measures to 
be taken to achieve such goals. 

Staff Findings: The sign already exists.  The expansion of the parameters will not have an 
adverse impact to the surrounding neighborhood.  The surrounding neighborhood is not 
residential.   

 



12 
 

(3) Show that the proposal meets the applicable specific and general standards required 
by this article. 

Staff Findings: The existing signage will be renovated but must continue to comply with the 
signage limitations for nighttime dimension.  
 
 
 

REQUIRED ACTIONS OF THE TOWN COUNCIL: 

 
A. Sample Motions. The role of the Town Council in this instance is to decide on the Special 

Use Permit Comprehensive Sign Plan request. The following sample motions have been 
provided by Staff for consideration by the Town Council: 

 
• Sample Motion for Approval: Having reviewed and considered the application 

materials, staff report, Planning Commission memo, and public comment, in 
accordance with the requirements of Section 8-4-2-C of the Town of Abingdon 
Zoning Ordinance, I move to approve the Special Use Permit Comprehensive Sign 
Plan. 

 
• Sample Motion for Denial: Having reviewed and considered the application 

materials, staff report, Planning Commission memo, and public comment, in 
accordance with the requirements of Section 8-4-2-C of the Town of Abingdon 
Zoning Ordinance, I move to deny the Special Use Permit Comprehensive Sign Plan. 
 

• Sample Motion for Continuance: Having reviewed and considered the application 
materials, staff report, Planning Commission memo, and public comment, I move to 
continue the request for Special Use Permit Comprehensive Sign Plan for the 
purpose of (explain reason for continuance, and if applicable, specify any additional 
information that is being requested) until (state the date when the item will be heard 
again). 

 


	2023.11.13 Council Packet - Reupload
	2023.11.13 Council packet
	A - 1 2023.11.13 draft agenda
	F - 1 2023.10.03 minutes
	F - 2 2023.10.19 minutes
	I - 1 SUP - Entrance to VHCC
	I - 2 SUP- 227 Stone Mill Road
	I - 3 ZTA - Chapter 44
	J - 1 Resolution - Master Firefighter Cameron Craig Memorial Bridge
	N - 3 Sinking Spring Cemetery Preservation Plan
	N - 4 Sinking Spring Cabin Roof Replacement

	CRD Proposal [revised2] - Abingdon Splash Pad Conversion[1]
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	
	Sheets and Views
	2.PAGE


	recirculation system vault 14ft.pdf
	Sheet1
	Drawing View1




	100 VHCC Drive Staff Report SUP



